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A healthy, wealthy and culturally vibrant iwi.

OUR MISSION

KA ORA TAKU TOA  
(KIA TŪ NGĀRUAHINE AI TĀTOU)

OUR VISION

NGĀKAUNUI
Sound Judgement

OUR VALUES
MĀHAKITANGA
Respect & Humility 

MANAAKITANGA
Sharing & Caring

MAHI KA TIKA
Transparency

MAHI PONO
Trustworthiness

HARI ME TE KOA
Fun & Celebration

Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust is the mandated post-settlement 
governance entity for Ngāruahine Iwi.

We recognise we have a duty to manage our settlement assets, 
not just for our generation but for generations that follow us.

OUR KAUPAPA
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE  
TRUST DEED SCHEDULE  
6 REQUIREMENTS FOR  PLANS  
AND REPORTS

Three Requirements for Annual Report 

An Annual Report prepared in accordance with clause 10.1 
shall be made available not less than 20 Working Days before 
an Annual General Meeting and shall contain, in respect of 
that Financial Year, the following information:

a)    a comparison of the Ngāruahine Group’s performance 
against the annual plan;

b)   a balance sheet and income and expenditure statements 
and notes so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
affairs of the Trust and the Ngāruahine Group for that 
Financial Year. The financial statements shall include as a 
separate item:

 i)  details of any remuneration or fees paid to any Trustee 
or any Trustee’s firm and details of any premiums paid in 
respect of Trustees’ indemnity insurance;

 ii)  changes in the value of the Trust Fund;
 iii) profit distribution;
c)  the steps taken by the Trust to increase the number of 

registered Members;
d)  details the sales and exchanges of Settlement Quota in the 

previous Financial Year, including:
 i)  the quantity of Settlement Quota held by the Asset-

Holding Company of the Trust at the beginning of that 
year;

 ii)  the value of Settlement Quota sold or exchanged;
 iii)  the identity of the purchaser or other party to the 

exchange;
 iv)  any transaction with Settlement Quota that has resulted 

in a registered interest by way of caveat or mortgage 
being placed over the Settlement Quota;

 v)  the Settlement Quota interests that have been registered 
against the Quota Shares of the Trust; and

 vi)  the value of Income Shares sold, exchanged, or 
acquired.

e)   the interactions of the Trust in fisheries matters, including:
 i) with other entities within Ngāruahine; and
 ii) with other Mandated Iwi Organisations; and
 iii)  with Te Ohu Kai Moana Trustee Limited;
f)    any changes made to the constitutional documents  

of the Trust or Trust Entities.
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VISION 
Ka ora taku toa – Kia tu 
Ngāruahine ai tatou 

MISSION 
A healthy, wealthy and 
culturally vibrant iwi 

PRIORITIES 
Relationships  
Capability  
Self-resilience

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

POUWHAKARAE REPORT
TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

POUWHAKARAE REPORT

Tēnā Koutou Ngāruahine uri, tēnā 
koutou katoa.

On behalf of the trustees I am 
pleased to present the annual report 
on the performance of Te Korowai o 
Ngāruahine Trust (Te Korowai) which 
includes Te Kīwai Maui Limited (Maui), 
the commercial arm, and Ngāruahine 
Fisheries Limited. This report is for 
the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 
2018. 

It has been a busy year for the 
group with the year beginning with 
leadership changes at the Trust level 
and in management. Te Korowai have 
emerged in a stronger position in 
terms of direction and relevance. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Te Korowai has no bank debt and 
meets its operating costs derived 
from the interest generated 
by its investments. The Treaty 
settlement quantum ($67m) 
remains intact and the Trust’s equity 
has increased by $4m (FY17/18: 
$82m, FY16/17: $79m) which is 
a significantly improved position 

that can be attributed to the mahi 
of the commercial arm, Te Kīwai 
Maui Limited. The Chair, Hinerangi 
Raumati-Tu’ua provides more detail in 
her report. 

This year the group are also reporting 
a $1.4m increase in our unrealised 
gains (FY17/18: $2.5m per profit and 
loss, FY16/17: $2.4m). Unrealised 
gains are investments that have not 
been sold. When they are sold they 
shift from being an unrealised gain, 
to being cash and are recorded as 
profit. Although it is not real cash, 
it’s worth keeping track on how our 
unrealised gains are performing. 

During this period there was a $285k 
increase in trading revenue compared 
to the previous year (FY 17/18: 
$2.7m, FY16/17: $2.4m) courtesy of 
pūtea made from our investments 
and income from Dawson Falls Lodge. 
However, at the same time there 
was an $800k increase in expenses 
(FY17/18: $3.3m, FY16/17: $2.4), and 
together this resulted in a net profit 
of $197k, a $60k increase from the 
year before (FY16/17: $137k). 

The increase in expenses can be 
attributed to marae expenses 
(FY17/18: $646k FY16/17: $146) 
which is made up of $304k from an 
external provider and $342k from  
Te Korowai directly. It also includes 
fees for directors appointed to Maui 
and the staff of the Dawson Falls 
Lodge.  

STRATEGY 

Over the year many uri participated 
in aspiration hui held around 
Taranaki. The kōrero of attendees 
contributed to the Trust renaming 
the pou to reflect whakaaro Māori. 
Kaitiakitanga was added as a fifth pou 
and together these changes are more 
representative of who we are and 
what we value. 

Further developments include 
focusing this strategy to 2040. This 
date reflects the 200 years since the 
signing of the Treaty of Waitangi, a 
significant time for Ngāruahine Iwi.

Further changes include a revised 
vision, and the kōrero is explained 
in this report (p.59), mission and 
priorities.  The Trustees are pleased 
to share the 2040 long-term plan 
with Ngāruahine Iwi.

Vision   Ka ora taku toa – Kia tu 
Ngāruahine ai tātou. 

Mission   A healthy, wealthy and 
culturally vibrant iwi. 

Priorities   Relationships, capability 
and self-resilience.

PEOPLE LEADERSHIP 

Last year a general election was 
conducted and saw board members 
retire and new members join the 
Trust. I would like to acknowledge 
Ngaraina Brooks who paved the way 
for my appointment to Te Korowai. 

It also important to acknowledge 
her brother John who was the first 
chair of Ngā Hapū o Ngāruahine Iwi 
Incorporated which negotiated the 
settlement Te Korowai administer for 
Ngāruahine Iwi. Tēnā kōrua. 

Other departing board members 
include Pat Gallagher (Ngāti 
Tamaahuroa me Tītahi hapū), Cilla 
Rei (Ngāti Haua), Tumi Toro (Ngāti 
Manuhiakai) and Paula Cuff (Kanihi-
Umutahi) who have contributed 
to the Post Treaty Settlement, for 
Ngāruahine Iwi. With their departure 
we welcomed on to the Trust Caroline 
Scott (Ngāti Tamaahuroa me Tītahi 
hapū), David More (Ngāti Haua) and 
Tihi Daisy Noble (Kanihi-Umutahi). A 
by-election was conducted following 
the retirement of Tumi Toro and Te 
Korowai welcomed Ferinica Hawe-
Foreman (Ngāti Manuhiakai) who 
joined the Trust on 11 May 2018. 

Te Korowai now has a full 
complement of Trustees whose 
diverse backgrounds and experience 
add to the discussions and decisions 
of the Ngāruahine Iwi. 

With the departure of Cassandra 
Crowley came the arrival of Allie 
Hemara-Wahanui. Allie has a long 
involvement with Ngāruahine 
and some may remember her 
involvement in the Treaty negotiation 
team and, prior to this, settling the 
Fisheries alongside Tihi Daisy Noble. 
Since her appointment, Allie has been 
working closely with the Trustees and 
her reports discuss in further detail the 
operational performance of Te Korowai. 

The year ahead will provide a clearer 
direction now that the 2040 long-
term strategy has been written 
with greater transparency back to 
Ngāruahine Iwi. Maui will continue 

to grow the assets, develop and 

optimise the management of Dawson 

Falls Lodge. Meanwhile, Allie and her 

team will continue to implement the 

strategy to achieve the vision and 

mission for Ngāruahine Iwi. 

In conclusion, I would like to thank 

the Trustees for their commitment, 

engagement, thoughtful and robust 

discussions. A very special mention 

to Will Edwards for his tautoko during 

my first term on Te Korowai and as 

Pouwhakarae. 

Finally, a very special thank you 

to Ngāruahine Iwi for the ongoing 

support of the Te Korowai O 

Ngāruahine Trust Board.  

  

 

Bev Gibson 

Pouwhakarae 

Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust

$3m increase  
in Trust Equity  
from last year.

2040 long term  
plan now in place.



1110

I am pleased to present my first 
annual report to Ngāruahine iwi on 
the management activities for the 
financial year ending 31 March 2018.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

This section of the report discusses 
our performance against the 2017/18 
Annual Plan.

a. Ngāruahinetanga

The aspiration hui, Takutai Moana, 
Maunga and reo wānanga are all 
kaupapa Te Korowai has facilitated 
or supported. The common element 
across these kaupapa is identity and 
ensuring that uri have an opportunity 
to participate and discuss 
Ngāruahinetanga. Complimentary 
to this are the communication 
activities that facilitate participation. 
A communication plan has been 
drafted that will shift our activities 
from being reactive space to being 
strategic, proactive and coordinated.

During the last quarter, 
communication activities across the 
organisation increased. Publishing 
the bi-monthly newsletter ‘Te 

Korowai’, the weekly briefing ‘Pākiki’, 
uploading relevant posts to Facebook 
and reviewing the Ngāruahine Iwi 
website are examples of efforts by  
Te Korowai to inform and engage with 
iwi of Ngāruahine. The recent special 
general hui was another forum where 
uri could raise issues and share their 
expectations of Te Korowai.

b. Finishing the mahi

A considerable amount of mahi for  
Te Korowai is multi-year so our efforts 
will continue into the next financial 
year. Examples of these kaupapa 
include; Takutai Moana applications, 
Maunga negotiations and the future 
role of the Taranaki Māori Trust 
Board. Te Korowai will provide regular 
updates about these kaupapa using 
the different communication avenues 
that have been initiated.

c. Hari me te Koa & Whanaungatanga

There were two significant kaupapa 
Ngāruahine hosted in this period. 
The first was the 2017 Taranaki Tū 
Mai festival and this annual report 
features an article on this kaupapa. 
The second was a visit from Ōtakou 

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

POUHAUTŪ REPORT

that preceded their visit to Parihaka. 
This was an opportunity for Te Korowai 
to reciprocate the manaakitanga 
extended by Ōtakou during the 
haerenga to Te Waipounamu prior to 
and culminating in the Ngāruahine 
hikoi of 2015, this included the 
Crown’s apology given at Hokitika.

d. Completing the foundations

Assets have been transferred to 
Maui and the reports from the 
Pouwhakarae and the Chair of Maui 
outline their performance. Te Korowai 
are fortunate to have a skilled group 
of directors managing Ngāruahine Iwi 
commercial investments.

The Trustees have opted for a 22-year 
strategy (instead of a 25 year plan) 
that will take Ngāruahine to 2040. 
Year 2040 is significant in that it is 
200 years since the signing of the 
Treaty of Waitangi. The strategy, a 
one-page document, is high level and 
the detail is captured in shorter term 
plans, like the annual plan, which is 
included in this report.

The Deferred Settlement Properties 
(DSP’s), reviewing the Trust Deed and 
establishing a charitable entity are 
other kaupapa that are multi-year 
projects. Te Korowai will provide 
regular updates during the year.

COMMITMENT TO MARAE

Te Korowai invested $646k in marae, 
which was made up of $304k from 
another funder and $342k from 
Te Korowai directly – a significant 
increase from the previous year 
(FY16/17: $146k). There has been 
much learned as to how Te Korowai 
supported the aspirations of 
Ngāruahine hapū and marae. There 
are also many areas for improvement.

Marae have a special place in 

our community. Therefore, the 
expectation that Te Korowai will 
support Ngāruahine marae is 
obvious. Unfortunately, the lack of 
a Te Korowai Marae Development 
Plan meant some marae knew what 
support was expected and others did 
not. This inconsistency was unfair 
to groups including suppliers who 
entered into agreements with marae 
on the understanding that pūtea 
arrangements had been confirmed. 
The significance of this issue was 
discussed at the Special General 
Hui in April this year, and while the 
hui understood the rationale to put 
marae payments on hold, there was 
an expectation that Te Korowai would 
put in place a policy and a plan to 
manage this kaupapa. This work is 
nearing completion.

IMPROVING OFFICE EFFECTIVENESS

The office has been re-organised 
into two teams to service two 
important kaupapa. The first team is 
Research and Policy, led by Louise 
Tester. This team is responsible for 
all environmental kaupapa and in 
the very near future will also be 
responsible for undertaking research 
and producing evidence that will 
underpin our social and cultural 
priorities.

The second team is Iwi Engagement, 
led by Te Ahu Rei. Engaging with 
Ngāruahine hapū, marae and uri is a 
core activity for Te Korowai and it is 
important that this kaupapa is led by 
Ngāruahine uri. This team is therefore 
responsible, with management 
oversight, for communication 
activities.

Building confidence and capability 
are two priorities going forward, 
and the journey so far has been 

challenging and exciting but one we 
are taking together as whānaunga.

STRATEGIC FOCUS

As outlined in the Pouwhakarae 
report, the primary focus is to 
strengthen our internal and external 
relationships, build Ngāruahine 
capability and most importantly 
improve self-resilience. The annual 
plan outlines what we intend doing 
between April 2018 to the end of 
March 2019. It is an ambitious plan 
but one we believe builds good 
stepping stones going forward.

CONCLUSION

Although I have been in this role for 
the last four months of this financial 
year, I would like to express my 
gratitude to the Trustees and kaimahi 
of Te Korowai. The annual plan is our 
commitment to Ngāruahine Iwi, and 
we look forward to reporting on our 
performance over the year.

Mauri ora

Allie Hemara-Wahanui

Pouhautū 
Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

POUHAUTŪ REPORT

Multi-year projects like 
Takutai Moana, Maunga 
Negotiations dominates 
our landscape.

" There has been much 
learned in how Te 
Korowai can support 
the aspirations of 
Ngāruahine hapū and 
marae."
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

KEY OPERATING DATA AT A GLANCE

TE KOROWAI KAIMAHI

Left to right (clockwise): Allie Hemara-Wahanui, Pouhautū; Kyla Maaka, Policy & Research Support; Te Ahu Rei, Te Poutakawainga (Iwi Engagement Manager); 
Kiri Erb, Executive Assistant; Louise Tester, Te Pourangahau (Policy & Research Manager); Ripeka Hudson, Administration & Iwi Engagement Support.

I am proud to present this report for 
the first full year of operations of 
Te Kīwai Maui o Ngāruahine Limited 
(Maui), which was established as 
the asset holding company and 
commercial investment arm of 
Ngāruahine. This includes Te Rere o 
Kapuni Limited (Dawson Falls Lodge) 
and Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited.

Our role is to protect and grow the 
value of Ngāruahine settlement 
assets and to undertake all 
commercial and fisheries activities 
of the group. This also includes 
managing fisheries assets held by 
Ngāruahine Fisheries Ltd.

In total, we now look after over $80 
million in assets, and have taken 
care in ensuring we have the right 
structure, capability and governance 
in place to manage and invest these 
assets for the benefit of Ngāruahine 
Iwi.

A key part of this focus has been 
establishing a board with the right 
mix of commercial experience and 
expertise, together with a strong 

understanding of Ngāruahine values 
and the unique advantages and 
opportunities available to us. 

I am therefore very pleased to 
report that we now have directors 
Taaringaroa Nicholas, Bev Gibson, and 
Dion Maaka (Associate Director) on 
the Board and I am very grateful for 
their work during the year. In addition 
we receive great support from the Te 
Korowai office and, in particular, from 
the Pouhautū, Allie Hemara-Wahanui.

Te Kīwai Maui have been working 
to put a governance framework in 
place. As a subsidiary of Te Korowai 
o Ngāruahine Trust (Te Korowai), we 
report quarterly to the Trustees. Te 
Korowai controls appointments to 
Maui, approves the annual plan and 
investment strategy, and has reserve 
powers for large transactions.

TE KĪWAI MAUI O NGĀRUAHINE LIMITED 

POUWHAKARAE REPORT

" We have recently 
committed to investing 
alongside other iwi in 
a collective vehicle, 
Te Pūia Tāpapa, which 
together with major NZ 
investors will target 
premium large-scale 
investments."

12

Strong growth  
of asset investment 
portfolio to over 
$80 million 

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

$74,534,209
$78,984,416

$81,700,377

TOTAL EQUITY

TERM LIABILITIES

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

$62,280
$96,942

$201,810

TOTAL ASSETS

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

$74,599,489
$79,083,549

$81,906,496

13
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We have recently committed to joint 
ventures alongside other iwi in a 
collective vehicle, Te Pūia Tāpapa, 
which together with major NZ 
investors will target premium large-
scale investments. 

Te Kīwai Maui are also progressing 
the participation in the Tai Hekenga 
joint venture (Taranaki Whānui) 
to acquire a portfolio of Crown 
settlement leaseback property 
in Wellington that offer secure 
attractive low-risk returns. Te Kīwai 
Maui intended investment in this 
opportunity is $8 million.

Locally, we are also currently 
reviewing opportunities associated 
with the Deferred Selection 
Properties ("DSP") available for 
purchase by Ngāruahine Iwi under 

commercial redress in the Treaty 
settlement.

These opportunities will complement 
the Te Korowai acquisition in 2016 
of the Dawson Falls Lodge, which in 
addition to a potential commercial 
investment, the property was 
recognised as a site of strategic and 
cultural value for Ngāruahine Iwi. Te 
Kiwai Maui's focus is on reviewing 
the infrastructure and operational 
enhancements of Dawson Falls 
Lodge, including plans to employ 
new live-in management with the 
experience and passion to develop 
the lodge in to a first-class cultural 
and tourist attraction. Te Kīwai 
Maui intend to incorporate greater 
Ngāruahine identity and culture 
into the way the lodge operates and 
interacts with customers and the 

community.

Te Kīwai Maui is committed to 
prudently managing and building 
the settlement asset portfolio for 
Ngāruahine Iwi and helping uri 
(descendants) reach their objectives 
through commercial investment 
success. Te Kīwai Maui is honoured 
to have this responsibility and are 
excited by the opportunities that lie 
ahead.

Hinerangi Raumati-Tu'ua

Pouwhakarae 
Te Kīwai Maui o Ngāruahine Limited

TE KĪWAI MAUI O NGĀRUAHINE LIMITED 

POUWHAKARAE REPORT

TE KĪWAI MAUI O NGĀRUAHINE LIMITED

MOVING FORWARD

As Te Kīwai Maui matures into the 
investment arm for Ngāruahine Iwi, 
the portfolio at this stage has a strong 
conservative weighting in cash and 
externally managed funds. 

A major focus for Te Kīwai Maui is 
finalising the investment strategy 
to develop and prudently grow the 
portfolio and increase investment 
returns consistent with the risk 
profile.

Te Kīwai Maui will take a long-term 
commercially disciplined approach 
to investment decisions, thus being 
patient in waiting for the right 
opportunities and will only invest 
where Te Kīwai Maui believe it can 
generate appropriate risk-adjusted 

2018 PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Given Te Korowai O Ngāruahine's 
recent settlement timing, the asset 
portfolio is predominantly low risk, 
externally managed fund portfolio 
investments supplemented by 
cash term deposits. This approach 
is transitory up till the Te Korowai 
O Ngāruahine Board approves an 
investment strategy.

The performance during the year is 
summarised in Table 1.

Te Kīwai Maui financial performance 
needs to be reviewed in light of the 
low risk profile of the investment 
portfolio.

On the strength of the 2017/2018 
performance, Maui grew the asset 
investment portfolio to just over  
$80 million, as summarised in  
Image 2.

TABLE 1: MAUI COMMERCIAL GROUP* FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FY18
 FY18  
 ($million)
Total Income 2.5
Total Expenses (0.9)

Profit before Tax 1.6

Income Tax (0.3)

Profit after Tax 1.3

Plus revaluations 2.0

Total Comprehensive Income 3.3

*Commercial Group includes Maui and Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited

IMAGE 2: MAUI INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO ($MILLION)

returns on capital.

Te Kīwai Maui will seek a balanced 

portfolio that generates the necessary 

cash flow to sustain distributions for 

Te Korowai but also provide for long-

term capital growth.

The development of the portfolio 

will focus on direct investment 

opportunities where Maui will take a 

more active role in the management 

of asset returns. This is distinguished 

from investing with external 

fund managers who perform this 

investment role. The objective of Te 

Kīwai Maui is to be deliberate and 

increase the weighting of the portolio 

over time in direct investments with 

stronger risk-adjusted returns.

The direct investments will centre 

on opportunities that play to 

the strengths of Te Korowai O 

Ngāruahine, including the settlement 

rights and leverage on a Ngāruahine 

Iwi presence in the local rohe. 

Investment opportunities that arise 

from relationships and partnerships, 

within Taranaki and further afield 

within Māoridom, will be given 

serious consideration.

Partnering with other like-minded 

entities, in particular Iwi in Taranaki 

enables access to a greater range 

of investment opportunities and to 

larger scale investments which are 

more likely to have the required 

quality of structure, governance and 

management.

TE KĪWAI MAUI O NGĀRUAHINE LIMITED 

POUWHAKARAE REPORT

Managed growth funds
$21.6

Cash & term deposits
$20.8

Managed income funds
$33.7

Other
$1.3

Fish assets
$2.8

Taaringaroa Nicholas 
Director

Bev Gibson 
Director

Hinerangi Raumati-Tu’ua 
Pouwhakarae

Dion Maaka 
Associate Director
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TRUSTEES

Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust

Bev Gibson* (Pouwhakarae) 
Caroline Scott * 
Cheryl Luke-Maraki 
Christine Ngawai Henare 
Tihi Daisy Noble* 
David More* 
John Hooker 
Omahuru Robinson 
Te Aroha Hohaia 
Wendy Eynon 
Will Edwards

Retired October-November 2017 
Cilla Rei  
Ngaraina Brooks  
Pat Gallaghger  
Paula Cuff  
Tumi Toro 

* Elected October 2017

Te Korowai Governace  
Sub-Committees

The Pouwhakarae sits on all 
committees as an ex-officio member

TE OHU AROTAKE  
(Audit & Risk) 
Te Aroha Hohaia (Chair) 
David More 
Will Edwards 
Neil Taylor (Independent)

TE IRA AUAHA 
(Governance & Nominations) 
Christine Ngawai Henare (Chair) 
Tihi Daisy Noble 
Wendy Eynon

TE AROHAEHAE HAUTŪ  
Caroline Scott (Chair) 
Cheryl Luke-Maraki 
John Hooker 

Te Korowai Subsidiaries 

TE KĪWAI MAUI O NGĀRUAHINE LIMITED 
Hinerangi Raumati-Tu’ua (Chair) 
Taaringaroa Nicholas 
Bev Gibson 
Dion Maaka - Associate Director 
Andrew Harrison - Pouhatū

NGĀRUAHINE FISHERIES LIMITED 
Hinerangi Raumati-Tu’ua

TE RERE O KAPUNI LIMITED 
Hinerangi Raumati-Tu’ua

Independent Advisor -  
Te Ohu Arotake 
Neil Taylor  

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TRUST, COMMITTEE AND SUBSIDIARIES

16
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Bev Gibson

Lantern House Trust Independent Trustee

Parininihi Ki Waitotara Inc Committee of 
Management

Quality Visions Limited Managing Director

Mahia mai a Whaitara Chair

Taranaki District Health 
Board

Board Member

Te Kīwai Maui o 
Ngāruahine

Director

Te Aroha Hohaia

Access Radio Taranaki 
Trust

Trustee & Chair

Bizlink Hawera 
Incorporated

Member 

Business & Professional 
Women

Member

Federated Mountain 
Clubs of New Zealand 
Incorporated

Member 

South Taranaki Association 
of Justices of Peace

Member

STAGE Incorporated Member

Taranaki District Health 
Board

Board Member

Te Ara Pae Trust Trustee & Chair

TSB Community Trust Trustee 

TSB Group, Director Director 

Waiokura Marae & 
Reserves Trust

Responsible Trustee

Wendy Eynon

Community Organisation 
Grants Scheme - South 
Taranaki 

Member

Central Taranaki 
Association of Justices  
of the Peace

Member  

Kaponga Progressive 
Committee 

Member 

Spotswood College Employee

Te Ara Pae Trust Trustee

Puawai05 Trust Trustee

Puaway Pathways Contractor

John Hooker

Finance, Audit & Risk 
Committee, New Zealand 
Māori Council

Chair

Inuawai 1C2B Trust Advisory Trustee

Opunake High School Board of Trustees, 
Treasurer

Okahu/Inuawai (me etehi 
atu) Hapu

Chair

Mangawhero 2 Trust Advisory Trustee

Ngāti Haua 5 Trust Advisory Trustee

Stratford High School Employee

Takutai Moana Applicant

Te Kura o Ngāruahinerangi Employee

David More

New Plymouth District 
Council

Kaitohutohu

New Zealand 
Qualifications Authority

Contractee

Ngāti Hāua Whānui 
Incorporated Society 

Deputy Chair

Ngāti Hāua Whānui 
Incorporated Trust 

Trustee

Ngāti Hāua 16 Māori 
Reservation

Trustee

Takutai Moana Applicant

Whānui Incorporated 
Society under the Marine 
and Coastal Area (Takutai 
Moana) Act 2011

Applicant on behalf of 
Ngāti Hāua

Will Edwards

Dunedin Longitudinal 
Study: ‘Cost of Doing 
Nothing’ Health Inequities 
Study University of 
Auckland

First named Investigator
Advisory Group Member

MOMWD Trustee Ltd Director

Ngāti Tupaia Hapū 
Incorporated

Trustee

R & R Edwards Whanau 
Trustee Limited.

Trustee

Tangahoe Tribal Trust Trustee

Taranaki Futures Trust Trustee

Taumata Associates Trustee

Te Kupenga Matauranga o 
Taranaki Trust

Trustee

Te Mana Ririki Trust Board Member 

Te Poutiringa Incorporated, Trustee/ co-chair

Te Reo o Taranaki Trust Director

Cheryl Luke-Maraki

Araukuku Catholic Māori 
Club

Treasurer

Patea Māori Cultural 
Theatre Trust

Treasurer

Te Mana Kuratahi Primary 
School National Kapa haka 
competition

Aotea National Delegate

Te Kahui Maunga, AMPAC 
- Aotea Māori Performing 
Arts Committee

Secretary/Trustee

Te Kura Kaupapa Māori o 
Ngāti Ruanui

Board of Trustees 
Secretary

Waiokura Marae and 
Reserve

Trustee

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TRUSTEE INTERESTS
TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TRUSTEE INTERESTS

Christine Ngawai Henare

Aotearoa Marae Trustee/Treasurer

Te Rau Pani Trust Hapū appointed 
Representative 

Mangawhero #2 Advisory Trustee

(Māori Mental Health Trust, 
in the process of winding 
up)

Ngāti Haua Whanui 
Incorporated

Trustee

Taranaki District Health 
Board

Chief Advisor Māori Health

Taranaki ki Te Tonga Māori 
Health Forum

Convenor

Te Kawau Mārū Alliance 
Health Leadership Team

Member

Te Rau Pani Trust Hapū appointed 
Representative 
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Tihi Daisy Noble 

Takutai Moana Applicant

Te Kupenga o Kanihi 
Charitable Trust 

Chair 

Tihi Consultants Limited Director/ Owner

Te Rua o Te Moko 2B Trust Beneficiary/Trustee/
Secretary

1 April 2017 - 31 March 2018

Trustees

Board 
Meetings 
Attended

Board 
Meetings 
Eligible

Sub 
Committee 
Meetings 
Attended

Sub 
Committee 
Meetings 
Eligible

Bev Gibson (current Pou Whakarae) 8 8 8 8

Te Aroha Hohaia (Chair, Te Ohu Arotake) 13 14 11 11

Will Edwards (former Pou Whakarae) 14 14 10 12

Omahuru Robinson 12 14 4 4

John Hooker 9 14 7 7

Tumi Toro (retired November 2017) 8 11 - -

Paula Cuff (retired October 2017) 10 10 4 5

Christine Ngawai Henare 14 14 7 7

Wendy Eynon 14 14 7 7

Ngaraina Brooks (retired October 2017) 6 6 - -

Cheryl Luke-Maraki 11 14 4 4

Pat Gallagher (retired October 2017) 4 10 - -

Cilla Rei (retired October 2017) 9 10 - -

David More (elected October 2017) 4 4 3 3

Caroline Scott (elected October 2017) 4 4 3 3

Tihi Daisy Noble (elected October 2017) 4 4 - -

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

GOVERNANCE MEETINGS

Caroline Scott

Ketere Trustee

Oeo Pā Sec/Treasurer

Takutai Moana Applicant

Waiotama Trustee

Omahuru Robinson

Hāwera High School Board of Trustee Member 

Hāwera High School 
Whānau 

Group Chair 

Kanihi-Umutahi Hapū 
representative

Trustee

Mawhitiwhiti-Kanihi Pa 
Trust 

Chair

South Taranaki District 
Council 

Iwi Liaison Representative

St Joseph's School Hāwera Board of Trustee Member

Tekau-ma-rua member Member

Tūhono Trustee

Umutahi 2A1 Trustee

Umutahi 2B2 Trustee

Inuawai Limited Director

MENTOA Ltd Director

Araukuku Catholic Māori 
Club

Chair

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TRUSTEE INTERESTS

Allie Hemara- Wahanui

Ti Kauka Whānau Trust Trustee

Ngāruahine iwi, Special General Hui, 5 May 2018, Aotearoa Marae, Taranaki
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Since the inception of the festival 
Taranaki Tū Mai has grown from 
strength to strength and the 2017 
festival was no exception. The 
inaugural festival was hosted in 2009 
by Te Atiawa at Waitara, followed by 
Taranaki Iwi in 2011 at Parihaka, Ngā 
Rauru Kītahi in 2013 at Waverley and 
Ngāti Mutunga in 2015 at Urenui.

Shortly after the Ngāruahine tono 
was accepted, a hui was called 
to form an organising committee. 
‘Manaakitanga’ was identified as 
the guiding principle to underpin 
the many decisions, activities and 
expectations – important to keeping 

Primary School, and Manaia Golf Club 
which provided venues; Ngāruahine 
Iwi Health Services which organised 
and hosted the kaumātua games and 
the kaumātua café.

On the Friday of Labour Weekend 
2017, after almost two years of 
planning, Ngāruahine welcomed the 
maunga at Waiokura Marae. Iwi did 
not disappoint, and registrations were 
at record number. Iwi were hosted 
at different Ngāruahine marae. A 
wānanga was held after the pōhiri 
and hākari to discuss the ngeri 
‘Titokowaru’, written by Huirangi 
Waikerepuru. At each festival the 

everyone together and ensuring the 
festival was a success.

An event coordinators’ group was 
formed to organise and oversee the 
running of individual events. An 
ambitious programme was planned 
and a small army of 80 plus iwi 
volunteers were brought together to 
make this happen.

Community support for the event 
included the Manaia Bowling Club 
which volunteered its venue for the 
bowling and darts competitions and 
ran the competition; Auroa Primary 
School and Community Hall, Manaia 

Ngāruahine hosts 2017 
Taranaki Tū Mai

Taranaki Tū Mai is the premier biennial event held for the 
eight iwi of Taranaki whānui to celebrate whanaungatanga, 
kotahitanga and Taranakitanga. During Taranaki Tū Mai 2015 a 
tono was laid and accepted that Ngāruahine would host the next 
event in 2017.

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

Photography by Glenn Jeffrey
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hosting iwi has the honour of 
selecting one waiata, ngeri or haka 
that all iwi must learn and include as 
part of their kapa haka performance. 
Ngāruahine selected ‘Titokowaru’.

Day two, Saturday, is always the 
busiest. This time, different sporting 
activities were run across seven 
venues, in addition to a tamariki 
zone, kaumātua sports, a debating 
competition and an iwi bandstand. 
A massive number of 141 teams 
registered and a further 80 uri 
participated during the day. Those 
who attended were incredibly 
proud of their iwi and wearing 
their distinctive  iwi colours takes 

iwi with Ngāruahine winning the kapa 

haka – to our absolute delight – and 

Ngāti Maru named overall winners for 

a second consecutive festival. Ngāti 

Maru also offered to host Taranaki Tū 

Mai 2019 and the cycle of preparing 

for the next festival begins once 

again.

The visual spectacle of Taranaki Tū 

Mai is impressive. There is a sea of 

iwi colours where uri proudly display 

their iwi affiliations, and through this, 

we all of Taranaki whānui win!

that pride to an entirely new level 
of competition, regardless of skill. 
Competitiveness was evident at 
every event that involved a referee 
(or mediator) to manage the time, 
including the iwi debates.

Sunday is the day of the hugely 
popular kapa haka competition where 
each iwi takes to the stage. Previous 
festival kapa haka winners were 
Taranaki iwi and they had prepared to 
defend their title with gusto. Between 
performances, while the judges 
tallied their scores, the debate final 
was held.

Event placings were spread across the 

24 25



26 27

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

26 27



28 29

 CONTENTS 

Auditors' report 29
Financial statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income 31
Statement of Financial Position 32
Statement of Changes in Equity 33
Statement of Cash Flows 34
Notes to the financial statements
1 Summary of significant accounting policies 35
2 Income 36
3 Other income 37
4 Expenses 37
5 Cash & cash equivalents 38
6 Trade & other receivables 38
7 Goods and services tax 38
8 Prepayments & accrued income 38
9 Intangible assets 39
10 Property, plant and equipment 41
11 Current investments 42
12 Impairment 42
13 Financial instruments 42
14 Financial assets and liabilities 43
15 Investments 44
16 Trade & other payables 44
17 Income tax 45
18 Other current liabilities 45
19 Treaty settlements 46
20 Reserves & retained earnings 46
21 Trustee & director remuneration 47
22 Statement of cash flows 48
23 Accounting judgements & estimates 48
24 Changes in accounting policies 49
25 Comparatives 49
26 Related party transactions 49
27 Business combinations 51
28 Investments in subsidiaries 51
29 Remuneration of key management personnel  51
30 Commitments and Contingencies 51
31 Events occurring after the reporting period 51

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 54 Gill Street, PO Box 144, New Plymouth 4340, New Zealand
T: +64 6 757 5477, F: +64 6 757 9497, pwc.co.nz

Independent auditor’s report
To the trustees of Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust Group 

The consolidated financial statements comprise:

 the statement of financial position as at 31 Poutūterangi 2018; 

 the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

 the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

 the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

 the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust (the Trust), 
including its subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group as at 31 Poutūterangi 2018, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
Reduced Disclosure Regime (NZ IFRS RDR).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
NZ) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of providing a financial preparation tool
and tax consulting and compliance services The provision of these other services has not impaired our
independence as auditor of the Group.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report
The Trustees are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not, and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. At the time of our audit, there
was no other information available to us.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
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Note 2018
$

2017
$

REVENUE

Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge income (income from the lodge and cafe) 2 427,975 199,193

Cost of sales (food for Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge) (95,380) (46,884)

GROSS PROFIT 332,595 152,309

Investment income (money we made from our investments) 2 2,225,669 2,143,164

Fisheries income (income from selling our ACE quota) 2 134,822 106,147

Total trading income 2,693,086 2,401,620

Other Income 3 793,475 184,273

EXPENSES 4

Office expenses (what it costs to run the office) (414,105) (361,366)

Professional services (costs for auditors, lawyers etc) (684,859) (588,664)

Personnel expenses (staff costs across the Group) (1,030,782) (736,967)

Trustee & committee remuneration (217,131) (224,091)

Travel (67,511) (115,936)

Donations (32,827) (179,953)

Marae expenditure (646,473) (145,905)

General expenses (all other costs) (43,306) (34,280)

Fisheries fees (14,221) (17,892)

Pātaka (15,418) (10,430)

Taranaki Tū Mai Expenses (46,944) -

Bureau services (14,622) (8,978)

Directors fees (75,209) (22,573)

EXPENSES (3,303,408) (2,447,035)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 183,153 138,858

Income tax (tax owed to/received from IRD) 17 13,896 (1,362)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 197,049 137,496

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS:
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 
(non-cash changes in the value of our investments) 20 2,518,912 2,424,074

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2,518,912 2,424,074

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2,715,961 2,561,570

These accounts are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TAUKI WHĀNUI MONI WHIWHI  
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

PwC

Responsibilities of the Trustees for the consolidated financial statements
The Trustees are responsible, on behalf of the Trust, for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS RDR, and for such internal control as
the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs NZ and ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:

https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-
report-7/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Who we report to
This report is made solely to the Trust’s trustees, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s trustees, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or
for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Maxwell John
Dixon.

For and on behalf of:

Chartered Accountants
6 July 2018

New Plymouth
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

RIPANGA KAUTE O TE TŪRANGA PŪTEA  
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

Note 2018
$

2017
$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & cash equivalents (cash in the bank) 5 713,593 585,406

Trade & other receivables (money people owe us) 6 104,913 26,323

Inventories (food on hand at DFL) 9,052 6,200

Current tax receivables (income tax paid to IRD) 331,319 58,145

Current investments (bank term deposits) 11 21,105,000 22,101,505

Prepayments & accrued income (money paid in advance & income 
accrued but not yet received) 8 247,622 325,749

GST (GST refunds the IRD owes us) 35,625 22,675

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 22,547,124 23,126,003

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant & equipment (assets we own e.g. computers) 10 1,225,135 1,047,552

Intangible assets (assets we own which have no physical substance) 9 1,071,461 1,071,461

Investments (money invested) 15 57,062,776 53,838,533

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 59,359,372 55,957,546

TOTAL ASSETS 81,906,496 79,083,549

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables (people we owe money to) 16 201,810 96,942

Other current liabilities 18 4,309 2,191

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 206,119 99,133

TOTAL LIABILITIES 206,119 99,133

NET ASSETS 81,700,377 78,984,416

EQUITY

Treaty settlement 19 68,457,601 68,161,100

Reserves 20 1,433,900 1,945,530

Retained earnings (prior year profits for the Group) 20 11,808,876 8,877,786

81,700,377 78,984,416

TOTAL EQUITY 81,700,377 78,984,416

These accounts are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.

For and on behalf of the Board.

_______________________________

Bev Gibson
Pou Whakarae
Date: 6 July 2018

_______________________________

Te Aroha Hohaia
Chair, Te Ohu Arotake
Date: 6 July 2018

Consolidated Note Treaty 
Settlement

$

Other 
Reserves

$

Retained 
Earnings

$

Total
Equity

$

BALANCE AS AT 1 PAENGAWHĀWHĀ 2016 68,161,000 - 6,373,209 74,534,209

Profit (loss) for the year 20 (b) - - 137,496 137,496

Other comprehensive income

Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 20 (b) - - 2,424,074 2,424,074

Gain on acquisition - Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited 100 1,945,530 - 1,945,630

Total Comprehensive Income 100 1,945,530 2,561,570 4,507,200

Pre-acquisition profit - Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited - - (56,993) (56,993)

BALANCE AS AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017 68,161,100 1,945,530 8,877,786 78,984,416

BALANCE AS AT 1 PAENGAWHĀWHĀ 2017 68,161,100 1,945,530 8,877,786 78,984,416

Profit (loss) for the year 20 (b) - - 197,049 197,049

Other comprehensive income

Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 20 (b) - - 2,518,912 2,518,912

Transfer to treaty settlement 296,501 - (296,501) -

Transfer to reserves 20 (a) - (511,630) 511,630 -

Total Comprehensive Income 296,501 (511,630) 2,931,090 2,715,961

BALANCE AS AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018 68,457,601 1,433,900 11,808,876 81,700,377

These accounts are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TAUKI TŪTANGA REREKĒTANGA  
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

TAUKI AURERE PŪTEA  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

Note 2018
$

2017
$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Inflows

Investment income received 22 890,696 561,166

Contract and grant funding 368,175 105,600

GST received 126,871 83,999

Other income 61,056 94,868

Lodge receipts 428,804 199,709

Fisheries receipts 130,646 95,947

Total cash inflow from operating activities 2,006,248 1,141,289

Outflows

Payments to suppliers & employees (3,098,499) (2,312,559)

Income tax paid (39,122) (106,931)

GST paid (46,473) (18,198)

Inventory (2,851) (6,200)

Total cash outflow from operating activities (3,186,945) (2,443,888)

NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,180,697) (1,302,599)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Inflows

Receipts from managed funds 351,449 1,149,943

Receipts from the sale of fixed assets - 8,816

Investments in term deposits 996,505 -

Total cash inflow from investing activities 1,347,954 1,158,759

Outflows

Payments for property, plant & equipment (13,570) (1,039,677)

Payments for intangible assets - (1)

Acquisition of private equity (25,500) (433,500)

Investments in term deposits - (7,601,505)

Total cash outflow from investing activities (39,070) (9,074,683)

NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,308,884 (7,915,924)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Inflows

Fisheries cash on acquisition - 271,635

Outflows

NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - 271,635

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 128,187 (8,946,888)

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 585,406 9,532,294

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 5 713,593 585,406

These accounts are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes.

1     SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

Entities reporting

The entity reporting is Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust (Te 
Korowai) and its subsidiaries Te Kīwai Maui o Ngāruahine 
Limited, Te Rere o Kapuni Limited and Ngārahine Fisheries 
Limited (together the 'Group'). Te Korowai is the mandated 
post settlement entity for Ngāruahine.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice 
in New Zealand and the requirements of the Trustee Act 
1956 and the Financial Reporting Act 2013.

The Group is a for-profit entity for the purposes of 
complying with NZ GAAP. The financial statements comply 
with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (‘NZ IFRS’) and other applicable 
Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for profit-
oriented entities.

The Group is eligible to and has applied apply Tier 2 For-
profit Accounting Standards (New Zealand equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards – Reduced 
Disclosure Regime (‘NZ IFRS RDR’) on the basis that it does 
not have public accountability and is not a large for-profit 
public sector entity. The Group has elected to report in 
accordance with NZ IFRS RDR and has applied disclosure 
concessions.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation 
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including 
derivative instruments) at fair value through the statement 
of comprehensive income.

Measurement Basis

All of the Group's transactions are conducted in New 
Zealand dollars and the financial statements are 
presented in New Zealand dollars. Where transactions 
were undertaken in foreign currency the New Zealand 
dollar amount recorded by the bank has been used as 
the transaction value. No foreign currency accounts are 
maintained.

(b) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) 
over which the Group has control. The Group controls 
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns (i.e. profit/losses) from its involvement 
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns 
through its control over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 
to the Group and removed from the date that control 
ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account 
for any businesses that become part of the Group. The 
amount recorded for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the 
fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities accepted 
(including any that are contingent on certain events 
occurring) and the equity interests issued by the Group to 
bring it to the total acquisition price. Identifiable assets 
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed 
in a business combination are measured initially at their 
fair values at the acquisition date.

The amount paid above the fair value of the net assets 
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of the 
price paid is less than the fair value of the net assets 
a gain on acquisition is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised 
gains on transactions between group entities are excluded 
from the financial statements as the net effect for the 
Group is zero. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless 
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the 
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have 
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency 
with the policies adopted by the group.

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to 
existing standards that are not yet effective

Some changes to accounting standards have been 
published that will be mandatory for the Group to follow 
in coming financial years and have not been adopted 
early:

• NZ IFRS 16 'Leases' (compulsory from 1 January 
2019). NZ IFRS 16 replaces NZ IAS 17. Under NZ 
IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an 

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

PITOPITO KŌRERO MŌ NGĀ TAUKI PŪTEA  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

PITOPITO KŌRERO MŌ NGĀ TAUKI PŪTEA  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. NZ IAS 17, required a distinction 
between a finance lease (on balance sheet) and an 
operating lease (off balance sheet). However, NZ IFRS 
16 requires a lessee to recognise a lease liability 
reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-
use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts, meaning 
they will appear on the balance sheet. Included is 
an optional exemption for leases to exclude certain 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. 
The Group will adopt NZ IFRS 16 for the 2019/2020 
financial year. The only leases held is for the Te 
Korowai office and a photocopier, so the impact of this 
accounting standard will be minimal.

• NZ IFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers 
and associated amendments to various other 
standards' (compulsory from 1 January 2018). The 
XRB has issued a new standard for the recognition of 
revenue. That replaces NZ IAS 18 and NZ IAS 11 which 
covers construction contracts. NZ IFRS 15 is based on 
the principle that revenue is recognised when control 
of a good or service transfers to a customer, so the 

2     INCOME

(i) Lodge income

The Group operates Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge on Maunga Taranaki, which is owned by its subsidiary company Te 
Rere o Kapuni Limited. Income is recorded at the date the invoice is issued for accommodation and when payment is 
received for the restaurant and cafe. Sales are usually in cash, eftpos or by credit card at point of sale.

(ii) Fisheries sales

The Group operates Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited (NFL). Sales of annual catch entitlements (ACE) are recognised when 
invoiced.

(iii) Interest income 

Interest is recognised by the Group using the effective interest method.

(iv) PIE income

Portfolio Investment Entity (PIE) income and dividends are recognised when received. Dividend income is distributions 
from investments in managed PIE funds.

notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks 

and rewards. The Group will adopt NZ IFRS 15 in the 

2018/2019 year. It is expected that it will have no 

material impact on how revenue is recorded for the 

Group, however we are still assessing its full impact.

• NZ IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments and associated 

amendments to various other standards' (effective 

1 January 2018). NZ IFRS 9 replaces the multiple 

classification and measurement models in NZ IAS 39 

Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement 

with a single model that has initially only two 

classification categories: amortised cost and fair 

value. The Group will adopt the updated NZ IFRS 9 

in the 2018/2019 year, it is expected that this will 

have no material impact on how the Group records 

financial instruments.

There are no other changes to accounting standards that 

are not yet effective that would be expected to have a 

material impact on the Group.

2018
$

2017
$

Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge income 427,975 199,193

Interest income 738,092 766,228

PIE income 1,487,577 1,376,936

Annual catch equivalent sales 134,822 106,147

TOTAL INCOME 2,788,466 2,448,504

3     OTHER INCOME

Grant income, dividends and koha is recognised when it is received. All other income is recognised at the point a service 
has been delivered or commitment made by a customer. Other income is the reimbursement of costs from other parties 
where we have shared the costs of an event. Income from Taranaki Tū Mai (registration fees, stall fees and grants) was 
recorded when it was received.

Grants received during the 2018 income year were from Office of Treaty Settlement (OTS) for MACA and from 
Department of Internal Affairs (DIA) through Ohounuku Reserve Trust for their marae rebuild program. (2017: OTS grant 
for Ngā Hapū o Ngāruahine Inc costs for third reading and settlement costs).

4     EXPENSES

Expenses required to be disclosed separately by financial reporting standards include:
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2018
$

2017
$

Grants received OTS 66,043 105,600

Grants received Ohounuku Reserve Trust DIA Grant 304,348 -

Koha received 755 22,772

Contract income 3,157 -

Other income 38,144 15,691

Taranaki Tū Mai 39,282 -

Office Hireage 100 1,214

AFL dividends received 45,145 38,499

Depreciation recovered - 497

Treaty settlements received (note 19) 296,501 -

TOTAL OTHER INCOME 793,475 184,273

2018
$

2017
$

Depreciation 129,636 77,589

Amortisation of software 1,500 853

Impairment of software - 1,494

Interest Expense 32 42

Rental expense relating to operating leases 43,178 61,374

General expenses 43,887 34,280

General expenses include marketing, advertising, motor vehicle expenses, conference  
fees and external meeting costs.

Bad debt 1,288 -

The remaining debtors from the 2015 hikoi to Te Waipounamu were written off in  
March 2018 following a Board decision that these debts were no longer collectible. 

AUDITORS' FEES

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by  
PWC the Groups auditor, and its related practices:

Audit & review of financial reports and other audit work - PwC 44,730 31,500

Provision of license for financial reporting software - PwC 5,722 5,118

Total auditor remuneration 50,452 36,618
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5     CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include: petty cash, bank accounts and term deposits that are invested for less than a year.

Bank accounts earn interest at specified rates on daily balances and term deposits earn interest at the rate set at the 
time the investment is made.

2018
$

2017
$

Cash at bank & in hand 713,593 585,406

6     TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are the amounts that are owed to us by other organisations or individuals. Trade receivables are 
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. At the 
end of each month we assess whether we still expect to receive the amount that has been invoiced. Trade receivables 
include such items as OTS grant, sales invoiced from Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge but not paid at balance date.

The remaining debtors from the 2015 hikoi to Te Waipounamu were written off in March 2018 following a Board decision 
that these debts were no longer collectible. The amounted to a bad debt of $1,481 (GST inclusive).

7     GOODS AND SERVICES TAX

All amounts are shown exclusive of Goods and Services Tax except for accounts receivable and payable, which include 
GST.

8     PREPAYMENTS & ACCRUED INCOME

Prepayments are recorded at cost and expensed over the period they cover. Prepayments include office rent and 
insurance paid in advance. Accrued income is interest accrued on term deposits that will be received when the term 
deposits mature and accrued PIE income on the managed investments that is received quarterly. 

2018
$

2017
$

Hikoi contributions - 2,171

Trade receivables 104,913 24,152

104,913 26,323

2018
$

2017
$

Accrued interest 208,429 300,457

Prepayments 39,193 25,292

247,622 325,749

9     INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software

Intangible Assets are assets which you can't physically touch but the accounting standards require us to record 
these as an asset rather than expense. In October 2017 an app was purchased for the Taranaki Tū Mai Event hosted 
by Ngāruahine, since this app was for one event only it was fully amortised at 31 March 2018. (2017: During 2016 
we started using Tableau, a piece of software that required us to purchase a license that needed to be treated as 
an intangible asset, as the license provides the rights to access the software indefinitely, including after the yearly 
subscription for program support has been discontinued. The license was terminated during the 2017 financial year and 
was fully impaired).

Computer software costs recognised as an intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis (where the cost of the 
asset is divided evenly over the useful life for that type of asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill of $1 has been recorded for the excess of consideration paid over the assets received on the purchase of 
Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge (note 27b).

Fishing Quota

Fisheries quota held by Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited (NFL) is an indefinite life intangible asset because there is no 
forseeable limit to the period over which the quota is expected to generate cash inflows for NFL. The fishing quota is 
recognised at cost. The fishing quota is reviewed annually for impairment or whenever there is an indication that it 
may be impaired, there were no indications of impairment during the year (2017: Nil). The current market valuation 
undertaken at 31 March 2018 is $2,079,651. The quota consists of settlement quota of 59,791,957 shares and regular 
quota of 241,406 shares.

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

PITOPITO KŌRERO MŌ NGĀ TAUKI PŪTEA  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

PITOPITO KŌRERO MŌ NGĀ TAUKI PŪTEA  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018



40 41

9     INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill
$

Computer 
software

$

Indefinite life 
intangible 

assets
$

Total
$

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2016

Cost - 2,560 - 2,560

Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (213) - (213)

Net book amount - 2,347 - 2,347

YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017

Opening net book amount -  2,347 - 2,347

Additions 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

Impairment - (2,347) - (2,347)

Closing book amount 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017

Cost 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

Accumulated amortisation & impairment - - - -

Closing book amount 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

Opening cost 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

Additions - 1,500 - 1,500

Impairment - (1,500) - (1,500)

Closing book amount 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

Cost 1 1,500 - 1,501

Valuation - - 1,071,460 1,071,460

Accumulated amortisation & impairment - (1,500) - (1,500)

Closing book amount 1 - 1,071,460 1,071,461

10     PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

All property plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation, except for land which is recorded at 
fair value. Buildings are not depreciated.

Subsequent costs, such as additions or further development of the asset are recognised as a separate asset. This occurs 
at the point it is probable that the economic benefits of the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses in the year that they are incurred. Depreciation 
on all assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The residual values and estimated 
useful lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year to see if they are still appropriate. 
- Computer equipment 40% - 67% 
- Office equipment   7% - 50%  
- Fixtures and fittings   7% - 20%  
- Motor vehicles  21% 

Land
$

Buildings
$

Computer 
equipment

$

Fixtures & 
fittings

$

Motor 
vehicles

$

Office 
equipment

$

 
Chattels 

$
Total

$

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2016

Cost - - 26,575 35,615 - 42,995 - 105,185

Accumulated depreciation - - (12,374) (3,972) - (4,882) - (21,228)

Net book amount - - 14,201 31,643 - 38,113 - 83,957

YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017

Opening net book amount - - 14,201 31,643 - 38,113 - 83,957

Additions - 375,000 18,581 412,286 82,277 1,624 163,535 1,053,303

Disposals - - (3,917) - (8,816) - - (12,733)

Depreciation charge (note 4) - - (13,969) (40,411) (6,413) (5,730) (10,452) (76,975)

Closing net book amount - 375,000 14,896 403,518 67,048 34,007 153,083 1,047,552

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017

Cost - 375,000 45,156 447,900 73,461 44,620 163,535 1,149,672

Accumulated depreciation - - (30,260) (44,382) (6,413) (10,613) (10,452) (102,120)

Net book amount - 375,000 14,896 403,518 67,048 34,007 153,083 1,047,552

YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

Opening net book amount - 375,000 14,896 403,518 67,048 34,007 153,083 1,047,552

Additions 296,501 - 6,185 - 1,239 - 3,557 307,482

Disposals - - (263) - - - - (263)

Depreciation charge (note 4) - - (10,273) (76,196) (15,665) (6,291) (21,211) (129,636)

Closing net book amount 296,501 375,000 10,545 327,322 52,622 27,716 135,429 1,225,135

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2018

Cost 296,501 375,000 47,290 447,900 74,700 44,620 167,092 1,453,103

Accumulated depreciation - - (36,745) (120,578) (22,078) (16,904) (31,663) (227,968)

Net book amount 296,501 375,000 10,545 327,322 52,622 27,716 135,429 1,225,135
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11     CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Current investments include term deposits invested for less than 12 months at cost.

12     IMPAIRMENT

(i) Financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each year whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment 
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events since initial 
recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the 
financial asset, which can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include that a debtor is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency 
in payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation, and where data indicates 
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (discounted at the original effective interest rate). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the 
amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be objectively linked to 
an event after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed and recognised in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(ii) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, or intangible assets that are not ready to use, are not subject to 
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the assets fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For the purposes 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows 
(cash generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for possible reversal 
at each reporting date.

13     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial assets and liabilities are detailed on the next page. Prepayments, GST and income tax are excluded 
from the table as they do not meet the definition of a financial instrument.

For financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, changes in the fair values of these financial instruments are 
shown under the other comprehensive income section of the statement of comprehensive income. If the value of the 
financial instruments has increased it appears as income, if they have decreased it is a loss. Revenue earned on financial 
instruments for example interest, dividends and PIE income, is recorded separately in the profit and loss section of the 
statement of comprehensive income, this revenue is not included when calculating changes in fair value of the financial 
instruments. On the disposal of managed funds, any balance in other comprehensive income is reclassified to retained 
earnings.

2018
$

2017
$

Term deposits 21,105,000 22,101,505

14     FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets as per Statement of Financial Position
Amortised 

Cost 
$

Assets at fair value 
(through other 
comprehensive 

income)
$

Total
$

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI  2018

Cash and cash equivalents 713,593 - 713,593

Term deposits 21,105,000 - 21,105,000

Trade and other receivables 104,913 - 104,913

Managed funds (non-current investment) - 55,329,320 55,329,320

Oriens Private Equity (non-current investment) - 470,826 470,826

Aotearoa Fisheries Limited (non-current investment) - 1,305,472 1,305,472

21,923,506 57,105,618 79,029,124

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI  2017

Cash and cash equivalents 585,406 - 585,406

Term deposits 22,101,505 - 22,101,505

Trade and other receivables 26,324 - 26,324

Managed funds (non-current investment) - 52,135,413 52,135,413

Oriens Private Equity (non-current investment) - 397,648 397,648

Aotearoa Fisheries Limited (non-current investment) - 1,305,472 1,305,472

22,713,235 53,838,533 76,551,768

Financial liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position
Amortised 

Cost
$

Total
$

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI  2018

Trade and other payables 205,110 205,110

205,110 205,110

AT 31 POUTŪTERANGI  2017

Trade and other payables 96,942 96,942

96,942 96,942
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15     INVESTMENTS

Investments is comprised of investments in managed funds, AFL shares and private equity as detailed below.

Managed Funds

Investment in managed funds are recognised at fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. If the value of the managed fund has increased it will appear as income, if it has decreased it 
will appear as a loss. Investments are recorded at market value as determined by the fund managers using unit prices at 
year end.

Aotearoa Fisheries Limited Shares

AFL shares are recognised at fair value. Changes in the fair values of investments are recognised in other comprehensive 
income. If the value of the shares has increased it will appear as income, if it has decreased it will appear as a loss. 
Management assesses fair value at year end taking into account the dividend yield valuation, comparison to valuations 
from other Iwi for AFL shares and other external sources of information regarding AFL's current situation and future 
projections.

Private Equity Investments

Private Equity Investments are recognised at fair value. Changes in the fair values of investments are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. If the value has increased it will appear as income, if it has decreased it will appear as a loss. 
The Oriens Private Equity Investment is recorded at market value as determined by the fund at year end.

16     TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. They 
represent the amounts we owe for goods and services provided to the Group to the end of the financial year that are 
due to be paid. The amounts are unsecured and are paid within 30 days of an invoice being received.

2018
$

2017
$

Oriens Private Equity Investment 470,826 397,648

Aotearoa Fisheries Limited 1,262,630 1,305,472

Managed Funds 55,329,320 52,135,413

57,062,776 53,838,533

2018
$

2017
$

Trade payables 201,110 62,789

Accrued expenses - 33,453

Other payables 700 700

201,810 96,942

17     INCOME TAX

The tax expense for a period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except 
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws effective at year end. Management periodically 
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations as applicable tax legislation is subject to 
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the Inland 
Revenue Department.

All entities in the Group are registered Māori Authorities for taxation purposes and pay income tax at 17.5% (excluding 
NFL for the 2017 financial year which was taxed at 28%). Taxation is calculated on net profit before taxation, making any 
adjustments for amounts that are not tax deductible.

18     OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Income received in advance is prepaid accommodation at Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge. Vouchers are vouchers sold 
during the year which have yet to be redeemed for accommodation at Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge.

2018
$

2017
$

(A) INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:

Tax for current year (13,896) 1,362

Total current tax (13,896) 1,362

(B) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN INCOME TAX EXPENSE & PROFIT

Profit from continuing operations 183,153 138,858

Income tax @ 17.5% 32,052 24,300

Tax effects of:

   • Income not subject to tax (51,888) (18,480)

   • Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5,940 5,498

   • Pre-acquisition NFL profit (exempt from income tax) - (9,956)

(13,896) 1,362

Income tax expense (13,896) 1,362

The income tax receivable for 2018 included in the statement of financial position includes income tax for 2017 and 
2018 as the tax refunds from these years were carried forward with IRD to cover 2019 income tax.

2018
$

2017
$

Income received in advance 162 811

Vouchers 4,147 1,380

4,309 2,191
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19     TREATY SETTLEMENTS

The Groups equity is the sum of the funds received from the Ngāruahine historical treaty settlement plus share capital.

20     RESERVES & RETAINED EARNINGS

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

The gain on acquisition reserve arose when Te Korowai acquired the assets and liabilities of Ngā Hapū o Ngāruahine Iwi 
Inc (NHONI) including Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited, (NFL) via the Ngāruahine Claims Settlement Act 2016. The Group 
prepaid $672k in 2015 for NFL but received a net asset at book value of $2.7M resulting in a $1.94M net gain after 
deducting the liabilities of NHONI. The gain on acquisition may only be applied to charitable purposes as NHONI was a 
registered charity at the time the transfer occurred.

As part of the Ngāruahine Claims Settlement Act 2916, Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust received four properties; Te 
Kohinga (Ohawe Beach), Te Ngutu o te Manu site A (Ahipapa Road), Waipakari (Ohawe Beach), Te Poho o Taranaki (Manaia 
Road). The fair value of the properties received amounted to $296,501.

2018
Shares

2017
Shares

2018
$

2017
$

Ordinary shares 100 100 100 100

Historical treaty settlement  Quantum - - 67,089,539 67,089,539

Historical treaty settlement  Quota - - 1,071,461 1,071,461

Historical treaty settlement  Land - - 296,501 -

100 100 68,457,601 68,161,100

2018
$

2017
$

(a) Reserves

Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited gain on acquisition 1,433,900 1,945,530

1,433,900 1,945,530

MOVEMENTS:

Balance 1 Paengawhāwhā 1,945,530 1,945,530

Charitable spending (Marae Expenditure & Bureau Services) (511,630) -

BALANCE 31 POUTŪTERANGI 1,433,900 1,945,530

(b) Retained earnings

Movements in retained earnings were as follows:

Balance 1 Paengawhāwhā 8,877,786 6,373,209

Net profit for the year 197,049 137,496

Unrealised investment gains/(losses) 2,518,912 2,424,074

Transfer to reserves 511,630 -

Transfer to treaty settlement (296,501) -

Pre-acquisition retained earnings Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited - (56,993)

BALANCE 31 POUTŪTERANGI 11,808,876 8,877,786

21     TRUSTEE & DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

(a) Trustee remuneration

The Pou Whakarae, Deputy Chair and the Chairs of the Sub-committees receive a fixed amount. All other Trustees 
receive $12,000 per annum (2017: $1,000 per meeting attended). Any other ad hoc working committees of the Board 
are covered by the standard trustee remuneration.

2018

Trustees $

Board 
Meetings 
Attended

Board 
Meetings 
Eligible

Sub 
Committee 

Meetings 
Attended

Sub 
Committee 

Meetings 
Eligible

Bev Gibson (current Pou Whakarae) 23,731 8 8 8 8

Te Aroha Hohaia (Chair, Te Ohu Arotake) 22,057 13 14 11 11

Will Edwards (former Pou Whakarae) 29,769 14 14 10 12

Omahuru Robinson 18,398 12 14 4 4

John Hooker 13,013 9 14 7 7

Tumi Toro (retired November 2017) 7,249 8 11 - -

Paula Cuff (retired October 2017) 5,667 10 10 4 5

Christine Ngawai Henare 12,590 14 14 7 7

Wendy Eynon 11,205 14 14 7 7

Ngaraina Brooks (retired October 2017) 4,667 6 6 - -

Cheryl Luke-Maraki 11,205 11 14 4 4

Pat Gallagher (retired October 2017) 4,000 4 10 - -

Cilla Rei (retired October 2017) 5,667 9 10 - -

David More (elected October 2017) 5,538 4 4 3 3

Caroline Scott (elected October 2017) 6,923 4 4 3 3

Tihi Daisy Noble (elected October 2017) 5,538 4 4 - -

2017

Trustees $

Board 
Meetings 
Attended

Board 
Meetings 
Eligible

Sub 
Committee 

Meetings 
Attended

Sub 
Committee 

Meetings 
Eligible

Will Edwards (Te Pou Whakarae) 45,000 11 11 11 11

Te Aroha Hohaia (Chair, Te Ohu Arotake) 31,250 11 11 11 11

Omahuru Robinson (Deputy Chair) 21,450 11 11 1 1

John Hooker 13,100 11 11 5 5

Tumi Toro 12,600 11 11 4 6

Paula Cuff 11,600 10 11 6 6

Christine Ngawai Henare 11,450 11 11 1 1

Wendy Eynon 11,450 11 11 - -

Ngaraina Brooks 11,000 11 11 - -

Cheryl Luke-Maraki 10,000 10 11 - -

Pat Gallagher 10,000 10 11 - -

Cilla Rei 9,000 9 11 - -
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21     TRUSTEE & DIRECTOR REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Directors remuneration

Directors remuneration refers to directors' fees paid to the directors of Te Kiwai Maui o Ngāruahine Limited. No directors' 
fees are paid to directors of Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited and Te Rere o Kapuni Limited.

22     STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The following definitions are used in the Statement of Cash Flows:

- Cash includes coins, notes and cheques which can all be readily converted into cash and includes any at call 
borrowings such as bank overdrafts used by the Group as part of its day-to-day cash management.

- Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are incurred in the day-to-day running of the Group. 
It does not include any investment activities.

- Investing activities includes the cash flow that is obtained from the investments that the Group makes, such as our 
managed funds.

- Financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and 
borrowings of the entity.

23     ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS & ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods. All judgements and estimates 
made are believed to be reasonable given the current circumstances and information available.

Judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements include the following:

- Revenue recognition (notes 2 and 3)

- Intangible assets (note 9)

- Valuation of investments (note 15)

- Useful life, recoverable amount, depreciation and rates (note 10)

- Impairment (note 12)

2018
$

2017
$

Hinerangi Raumatu Tu'ua (Chair & independent director) 35,000 12,116

Taari Nicholas (independent director) - appointed December 2017 9,154 -

Bev Gibson (Trust appointed director) - appointed October 2017 5,769 -

Will Edwards (Trust appointed director - retired October 2017) 11,958 1,479

Tumi Toro (Trust appointed director - retired November 2017) 12,203 1,478

74,084 15,073

24     CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There have been no changes in accounting policy during the year.

Comparative balances have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation and classification in the current 
period.

25     COMPARATIVES

The 2017 comparatives include:

- Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited from 6 December 2016 - three months and 25 days revenue and expenses

- Te Kīwai Maui o Ngāruahine Limited from 30 September 2016 - six months revenue and expenses

- Te Rere o Kapuni Limited from 30 September 2016 - six months revenue and expenses

The 2018 results include a full twelve months (year) of results from the three companies listed above.

26     RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The accounting standards require us to disclose information about related parties. Related parties are organisations and 
individuals that have significant influence, control over, common management personnel or similar Board to the Group. 
This means any organisation that a Trustee is also a Trustee or Director on is a related party.

The Group's related parties during the year were:

- The now wound up pre-settlement entity Ngā Hapū o Ngāruahine Iwi Incorporated (NHONI). Several of the Te Korowai 
trustees were also trustees of NHONI.

- The members of the Te Korowai Board as individuals (note 21)

- The directors of all subsidiary companies (note 21)

- Te Reo o Taranaki: Will Edwards a Te Korowai Trustee is also a Trustee on the board of Te Reo o Taranaki.

- TSB Community Trust, Te Aroha Hohaia is also a Trustee on the Board of the TSB Community Trust.

- Waiokura Marae and Reserves Trust: Te Aroha Hohaia and Cheryl Luke-Maraki are Trustees of Te Korowai and Waiokura 
Marae and Reserves Trust.

- Ngāti Haua Whānui Incorporated: David More, Cilla Rei and Christine Ngawai Henare are Trustees of Te Korowai and 
Ngāti Haua Whānui Inc.

- Ngāti Haua Sub 16: David More is a Trustee of Te Korowai and Ngāti Haua Sub 16.

- Aotearoa Pa: Christine Ngawai Henare and Ngaraina Brooks were Trustees of Te Korowai during the year and Aotearoa 
Pa.

- Okahu-Inuawai (me ētehi atu) Hapū: John Hooker is a Trustee of Te Korowai and Chair of Okahu-Inuawai (me ētehi atu) 
Hapū.

- Oeo Pa: Caroline Scott is a Trustee of Te Korowai and Trustee, Secretary and Treasurer of Oeo Pa.

- Kanihi-Mawhitiwhiti Pa: Paula Cuff and Omahuru Robinson were Trustees of Te Korowai during the year and Kanihi-
Mawhitiwhiti Pa.

- Other Pa and Hapū are not related parties as defined by the accounting standards but for the purpose of transparency 
all amounts spent on them have been included below.
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26     RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Transactions with related parties Transaction Year-end

Related party Nature of transactions Relationship with 
trust

2018
$

2017
$

2018
$

2017
$

Ngā Hapū o Ngāruahine 
Iwi Inc

Expenses Recharged Pre-Settlement 
Entity for 
Ngāruahine

- 83,452 - -

Te Korowai Trustees Directors & Officers 
Insurance

Trustees - (16,070) - -

Te Reo o Taranaki Office Rental Common Trustees - 1,397 - -

TSB Community Trust Taranaki Tū Mai Grant Common Trustees 16,956 - - -

Ngāti Haua Whānui Inc Bureau Services Common Trustees (1,231) (1,578) - -

Ngāti Manuhiakai Hapū Bureau Services Non-Related (276) (445) - -

Okahu-Inuawai (me ētehi 
atu) Hapū

Bureau Services Common Trustees (1,829) (380) - -

Oeo Pā Bureau Services, pūtea 
tautoko (2017) & Marae 
Repairs

Common Trustees (28,846) (52,674) - -

Ohounuku Reserve Trust 
(Tawhitinui Marae)

Bureau Services, Marae 
Repairs & pūtea tautoko 
(2017)

Non-Related (405,785) (29,016) - -

Ohounuku Reserve Trust 
(Tawhitinui Marae)

DIA Grant received and 
distributed by Te Korowai 
on behalf of Tawhitinui 
Marae

Non-Related 304,348 - - -

Ngāti Haua Sub 16 Bureau Services & Marae 
Repairs

Common Trustees (20,543) (1,578) - -

Okare ki Uta Marae Marae Repairs & pūtea 
tautoko

Common Trustees - (74,545) - -

Waiokura Marae and 
Reserves Trust

Bureau Services &  pūtea 
tautoko (2017)

Common Trustees (9,134) (20,562) - -

Te Aroha o Titokowaru 
Marae

Bureau Services, pūtea 
tautoko (2017) & Marae 
Repairs

Non-Related (19,549) (29,212) - -

Aotearoa Pa Bureau Services, pūtea 
tautoko (2017) & Marae 
Repairs

Common Trustees (13,515) (62,580) - -

Kanihi-Mawhitiwhiti Pa 
Trust

Bureau Services, Marae 
repairs & pūtea tautoko 
(2017)

Common Trustees (158,283) (21,498) (79,189) -

Te Rangatapu Marae Bureau Services & pūtea 
tautoko (2017)

Non-Related (274) (20,084) - -

27     BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations are recorded in accordance with the methodology set out in note 1 (b) (i).  There were no 
business combinations during the 31 March 2018 financial year, the business combinations detailed below occurred 
during the 31 March 2017 financial year.

(a) Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited

On 6 December 2016 the assets and liabilities of Ngā Hapū o Ngāruahine Iwi Inc (NHONI) including Ngāruahine 
Fisheries Limited (NFL), were acquired via the Ngāruahine Claims Settlement Act 2016. Te Korowai had paid $672k as a 
prepayment for a portion of the acquisition. NFL on transfer had a fair value of $2.7M therefore a gain on acquisition of 
$1.9M was recorded directly in equity under other reserves. NHONI was wound up via the Ngāruahine Claims Settlement 
Act 2016.

(b) Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge

On 30 September 2016 Te Rere o Kapuni Limited (subsidiary company of Te Korowai) acquired the business of Dawson 
Falls Mountain Lodge from Eidelweiss Small Goods Limited for $950,000.

28     INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Group had the following subsidiaries at 31 Poutūterangi 2018, all subsidiaries are included in the consolidation. 

29     REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

30     COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 Poutūterangi 2018 the Group had no contingent liabilities or assets. (2017: Nil)

31     EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no events occurring subsequent to balance date which require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial 
statements. (2017: As part of the Ngāruahine Claims Settlement Act 2016, Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust received 
four properties, Te Kohinga, Te Ngutu o te Manu site A, Waipakari, and Te Poho o Taranaki for $1 each. Title to these 
properties was transferred during May 2017). 

 
 
 
Name

 
 
 
Nature of business

Proportion of 
ordinary shares held 

by the Group 
%

Te Kīwai Maui o Ngāruahine Limited Holding Company 100

Te Rere o Kapuni Limited trading as Dawson Falls Mountain Lodge Hospitality and tourism 100

Ngāruahine Fisheries Limited Treaty fisheries settlement assets 100

2018 2017

$120,000 - $169,999 2 1
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017 

SATURDAY, 26 AUGUST 2017 AT 9.00AM, AOTEAROA MARAE, HASTINGS ROAD, OKAIAWA

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 POUTŪTERANGI 2017

KARAKIA 
Tama Eynon

MIHI / WELCOME 
Will Edwards (Pouwhakarae)

1. APOLOGIES 
Doug Brooks, Bonita Bigham, Thomas Webb, Sarah Matangi, Hinerangi Edwards, Makere Edwards, Patina Edwards

APOLOGY ACCEPTED 
Moved: Peter Moeahu 
Seconded: John Hooker 
CARRIED

2. PREVIOUS MINUTES – JULY 2016 
Received 
Moved: Peter Moeahu 
Seconded: John Hooker

Minutes were confirmed subject to correcting the apologies 
Moved: Peter Moeahu 
Seconded: Tama Eynon 
CARRIED

3. CHAIR'S REPORT 
Noted

4. FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS 
Comments from Uri: 
• That $5–$6 million be set aside for Marae. 
• That Ngāruahine considers its relationship with ASB given their sponsorship of Mike Hosking

5. TE KĪWAI MĀUI O NGĀRUAHINE REPORT 
Highlights: 
1. Quantum transferred from Te Korowai o Ngāruahine (Trust) to Te Kīwai Maui Limited (Investment); 
2. Purchase of Dawson Falls/Te Rere o Kapuni Limited; 
3. Investment in Port Nicholson project along with other Māori and post-Treaty settlement entity organisations. 
Moved: Peter Moeahu 
Seconded: Allie Hemara-Wahanui 
CARRIED

6. TE KOROWAI FIVE YEAR AND ANNUAL PLANS (2015-2020) AND LONG TERM 25-YEAR LONG-TERM PLAN (2015-2040) 
The Pouwhakarae tabled the Annual Plan (2017-2018) and the 5-year plan (2015-2020). The 25-year long term plan is 
still under review. 
Moved: Tama Eynon/Phoebe Paraha 
Seconded: Phoebe Paraha 
Against: Allie Hemara-Wahanui, Te Rawanake Coles

7. TRUSTEE REMUNERATION 
The General Manager outlined the requirements of the Trust Deed and Te Korowai o Ngāruahine Trust is seeking external 
advice. Beneficiaries informed of Trustees’ remuneration and schedule of fees. Unhappiness expressed at fee increases 
given the performance of the trust.

8. GENERAL BUSINESS 
•  The lateness of annual reports – disappointment was expressed about the lateness of the Annual Report. Uri felt there 

was no opportunity for uri to read the report before attending AGM, thereby limiting their partcipation.

•  Date change of Annual General Meeting  - disappointment with the change of date and uri believed the reason given 
was inadequate. Communications coming from the office was also concerning.

•  Trust board elections – a member explained the difficulty in submitting their candidate election application form. 
The member stated a time extension was granted by ElectionNZ, however, this instruction was a departure from the 
election process. The member called for fairness and urged that the election process is done differently next time. 
Another uri member expressed their frustration at finding out that their application form was invalid at today's AGM.

•  Changing hapū electorates prior to elections - the General Manager explained the online registration process and 
the role and responsibility of the membership committee, i.e. to verify the accuracy of the uri membership and 
communicate information/data to the registrant. The GM advised apart from the election period, members could 
change their hapū electorate anytime. There was a concern over the validity and accuracy of the registration process, 
and clearer communications were called for. The GM stated checks were in place.

•  Trust deed review - it was raised that the trust deed should be reviewed. Uri wanted to see an iwi-wide representative 
model rather than the status quo (twelve hapū representatives) and whether elections by iwi was better than hapū. 
In addition, it is expected candidate nominees will have no criminal convictions when submitting their election 
application form.

•  Te Reo o Ngāruahine – it was asked how will Te Korowai o Ngāruahine support the advancement of te reo Māori? Te reo 
initiatives, it was advised, that this will be a priority in the long term plan.

•  Communication with uri – it was noted that good engagement was possible via technology and while nothing is 
perfect, there is an opportunity to improve. The trust was encouraged to empower the people by having more korero.

• Half-yearly hui - it was suggested Te Korowai o Ngāruahine hold a half-yearly hui.

•  Trans-Tasman Resource offshore iron ore dispute – the Pouwhakarae outlined the steps taken so far by Te Korowai o 
Ngāruahine Trust and made reference that there were grounds for appeal on points of law. Conversations had been 
held with management and Chairs of Ngāti Ruanui and Ngā Rauru. It was asked whether a commitment had been made 
to collaborate with Ngāti Ruanui and Ngā Rauru as affected parties and efforts to circumvent a High Court process.

•  General Manager's departure - questions were raised about the exit package for the outgoing General Manager and 
had there been conversations with the incoming. The Chair advised a process was underway and no conversations had 
been had with anyone.

•  Marine and Coastal Access Act (MACAA) - What was happening with the Takutai Moana application? Uri pressed for a 
hui with hapū to have the matter discussed.

•  Pātaka - a query was raised about the quality of kaimoana especially pāua. The General Manager spoke about the 
issues with premium pāua and is meeting with Egmont Seafoods.

9. CLOSING KARAKIA 
2.40pm Tama Eynon
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TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

ANNUAL PLAN 2018-2019

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE – RELATIONSHIPS INITIATIVES 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE – CAPABILITY INITIATIVES 

Mana  
Motuhake 

Ngāruahinetanga Manaakitanga Tahua Puanga 
Kairau 

Kaitiakitanga 

Enter into Mana Whakahono a Rohe 
relationship agreements with local 
and regional councils. 

Improve communications activities 
to inform and engage uri 

Rebrand Te Korowai to reflect 
strategic pou and priorities 

Survey registered members for 
feedback on priorities 

Mana  
Motuhake 

Ngāruahinetanga Manaakitanga Tahua Puanga 
Kairau 

Kaitiakitanga 

Partner with Te Reo o Ngāruahine to 
increase the use of Ngāruahine reo 
across the rohe 

Improve the cultural confidence of 
Trust kaimahi 

Assess hapū and marae governance 
capability and develop a training 
plan in partnership with hapū and 
marae 

Improve the financial capability 
of hapū and marae via the Bureau 
services

Engage an intern to manage the 
Bureau services (subject to third 
party investment)

Raise land management capability 
and revenue of hapū and marae 
(subject to third party investment)

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

ANNUAL PLAN 2018-2019

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE – SELF-RESILIENCE INITIATIVES 

Mana  
Motuhake 

Ngāruahinetanga Manaakitanga Tahua Puanga 
Kairau 

Kaitiakitanga 

Develop an Iwi Environmental Plan 

Progress Takutai Moana applications 
with hapū  

Complete the DSP process and 
contribute to the financial wellbeing 
of Ngāruahine iwi  

Establish an Associate Directorship 
succession programme

Develop an Iwi education and 
scholarship programme 

Invest in Ngāruahine marae 

Develop a strategy for Dawson 
Falls Lodge (subject to third party 
investment)

Organise at least two career 
planning wananga targeting 
Ngāruahine uri (subject to third 
party investment)
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VISION  
Ka ora taku toa (Kia tū Ngāruahine ai tātou)

MISSION  
A healthy, wealthy and culturally vibrant iwi

VALUES  
Ngākaunui, māhakitanga, manaakitanga, mahi ka tika, 
mahi pono, hari me te koa

STRATEGIC POU  
Mana Motuhake, Ngāruahinetanga, Manaakitanga, 
Kaitiakitanga, Tahua o Puanga Kairau

TE KOROWAI O NGĀRUAHINE TRUST GROUP 

LONG TERM PLAN 2040

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES – RELATIONSHIPS
NGĀRUAHINE IWI, HAPŪ AND WHĀNAU ARE CONNECTED AND FLOURISHING 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES – CAPABILITY
CAPABILITY BUILDING THROUGH WHĀNAU, HAPŪ, IWI 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES – SELF-RESILIENCE
NGĀRUAHINE WHĀNAU, HAPŪ AND MARAE ARE MAKING DECISIONS THAT LEAD TO BETTER OUTCOMES

INITIATIVES 
1.  Whanaungatanga agreements in place with all 

Ngāruahine hapū

2.  Tikanga based relationships with Iwi and other 
organisations

3.  Facilitate strong engagement with hapū and marae to 
increase Ngāruahine vitality

4. Access resources to support Ngāruahine goals.

MEASURES  
1.  Ngāruahine has control or significant influence of all 

decisions that affect our rohe

2.  Active hapū and marae forum to discuss priorities and 
opportunities

3. Relationship arrangements reviewed every five years.

4.  Access to external resources increased by 10% every 
two years

5. Net asset value at $90m.

INITIATIVES 
1.  The environment is the starting point for Ngāruahine 

initiatives 

2.  Provide opportunities for uri to strengthen their 
knowledge of Ngāruahine reo and tikanga

3.  Grow rangatahi as future successors

4.  Capture Ngāruahine history and knowledge, and 
transmit to all uri

5.  Build financial capability of Ngāruahine whānau, hapū 
and marae.

MEASURES  
1.  Iwi and hapū environmental plans in place and kaitiaki 

are developed

2.  Successful rangatahi initiatives that transmit iwi values 
are in place

3. Annual wānanga developed and delivered.

4.  Increased number of Ngāruahine te reo speakers from 
2018.

INITIATIVES 
1.  Achieve sustainable revenues to uphold Ngāruahine 

2040 strategies and vision

2. 0% youth unemployment in Ngāruahine rohe by 2030

3.  Empower uri with financial knowledge and wealth 
creation

4. Whānau has access to wellbeing support

5.  Ensure whānau have healthy, self-sufficient and 
sustainable homes.

6.  Facilitate, lead and support a drug free, healthy  
eating living.

MEASURES  
1. Wharekura in place and five kōhanga  operating

2.  80% of Ngāruahine uri in Taranaki are in the green zone 
for the TDHB

3. All marae are functional and operational

4. 50% on Māori roll and 90% of Ngāruahine vote

5. Hapū hui commences in Māori

6. Assist whānau to develop their own whānau plans.
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E kore au e mate,  
Ka mate ko te mate  
Ka mate ko te mate 
Ka ora taku toa

This kōrero is to remind us of the campaign of Titokowaru.  
'E kore au e mate, ka mate ko te mate' reflects a time when 
our tupuna fought to the bitter end and even after death, 
they refused to give up.  They refused to die because our 
existence as Ngāruahine, tangata whenua was paramount.

Today, our mere existence cannot be our goal. 
'Ka ora taku toa' is our rallying cry that we must flourish 
and thrive. Ngāruahine iwi take every action to be a 
healthy, wealthy and culturally vibrant iwi and 'ka ora 
taku toa' is our vision for Ngāruahine iwi.

E kore au e mate,  
Ka mate ko te mate  
Ka mate ko te mate 
Ka ora taku toa
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